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The attached letter to William J. Thompson of the UTU further 
explains FRA's position on several issues related to the Utility 
Employee regulation(§ 218.22) and is intended to provide 
specific interpretive guidance to the field concerning these 
issues. However, as always, inspectors should continue to 
consider the specific circumstances of each situation in applying 
this guidance. 
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JAN 2 0 1995 

Mr. William·J. Thompson 
Chairman and State Legislative Director 
United Transportation Union 
5918 Sharon Wooda Boulevard 
columl:)ua, Ohio 43229 

Dear Mr. Thompaon: 

Thank you tor your letter requesting interpretation ot the 
Federal Railroad Adlliniatration's (FRA) regulation on utility 

Your first queation dealt specifically with regularly asaigned 
operating themaalvea to another crew. I 
otter the preci•• language of the preamble to thoroughly explain 
our policy in· this area: 

Nin •ub••ction (b), FRA limits the a•signmant oL the utility 
employee to only on• crew at a tillle. This i• naca•sary to 
prevent conLu•ion a• to th• location and dutie• oL that 
employee, and to •n•ur• that th• employee is, in reality, a 
maaber oL th• cr,w to which h• or she i• a••igned Lor the 
duration oL th• u•igmHlllt. For example, iL an employee is 
usignad a• a train crewmelllber-to on• train Lor an entire 
tour oL duty, that employee may.NOT, while awaiting 
departure Lrom the yard, be temporarily assigned to a second 
train crew. On the other hand, a member oL an inbound train 
crew at a crew change point, whose •••ignment to th• train 
i• ••••ntially complete, could then be assigned as a utility 
employee to the outbound craw. Furthermore, an employee 
could not aimultaneou•ly parLorm duties on tilo diLLerent 
trains." 

It was never FRA'•· intent to circumvent either the collective 
bargaining proceaa or existing internal railroad policy regarding 
the mechanics ot duties, and nothing in the regulation 
presumes to do that. The rule merely sets minimum requirements 
for the protection ot persona working as utility employees. 

Your second question asked what restrictions exist in the 
regulation relating to who may be assigned to perform the.duties 
of a utility employee. The regulations simply state that a 
utility employee i• a "railroad employee assigned to and 
functioning aa a temporary member ot a train or yard craw whose 
primary tune:tion to aaaiat the train or yard crew •••• " There 
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are no reatrictions as to class or craft or employee who may be 
aaaigned aa a utility employee. The wording of the regulation is 
claaa and craft neutral. The rule applies to all employees on a 
functional baaia, not on claaa and craft basis. Thia waa 
specifically addressed in the preamble to the rule as follows: 
11 ••• FRA traditionally viewed the blue signal requirements as 
addraaaing functional rather than craft distinctions, with the 
exception of train and yard crews ••.• " 

Queation three inquired into whether an officer or manager of the 
railroad :may assign himself as a utility employee and perform 
dutiea without blue aignal protaction. As stated in the response 
to your sacdnd question, the regulation does not restrict who may 
be assigned a• a utility employee. Assignment of an officer or 
manager as a utility employee is not prohibited by the 
regulation. However, once assigned aa a utility employee, that 
individual immediately becomes subject to carrier operating 
rules, Federal houra of aervice provisions, and Federal drug and 
alcohol teating. 

Your fourth dealt with whether a railroad can a 
person to be a utility employee if, at the time ot the 
asaignment, they are not working in a cla•• or craft subject to 
the operating rules, hour• of service proviaions, and FRA drug 
and alcohol regulations. As stated previously, once an 
individual is assigned to a crew as a utility employee, that 
individual is subject to the above provisions immediately upon 
such assignment, regardless of his or her prior status. There is 
an expectation that employees subject to aaaignmant aa utility 
employ••• will be properly trained on applicable operating rules, 
and will be in compliance with Federal pre-employment and random 
drug tasting prior t.52 being aaaignad. 

I would hasten to add that the inclusion of employees in random 
drug taating pools ia not automatic, baaed solelvenew sliagularld 
or occasional performance of covered service. Rather, FRA looks 
to how frequently covered service is actually performed. In this 
regard, lacking a precise definition of the term "occasional" in 
our drug and alcohol regulation•~ the Blle•ohlad, an employee 
particular circumstances in each situation on a case by case 
basis. For instance, an employee called to perform covered 
service one or two within a 3-month period would likely not 
be included in a random poo 
called to perform covered service 10 or 12 times in the same 
period should ba included in a random pool. 

Your fifth and final question aakad whether the utility employee 
regulation overrides collective bargaining agreements in place 
between employ••• and management. The Federal regulations do not 
supplant any existing collective bargaining agreements regarding 
who may be assigned to tasks baaed on membership in a partiqular 
craft. The regulations only provide minimum protection when an 
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employee ot course any agreement that is 
contrary to the requirements of the rule must yield to i~ 
(e.g., an agreement that permits work by utility employees tc 
occur without the protection required by the rule). 

I appreciate your in this matter and hope the 
information provided is helpful. If you have any further 
suggestions or comments that would promote a better understanding 
of thia matter, I will be more than happy to consider them. 

Sincerely, 

Bruce M. l"ine 
Acting Adllliniatrator 

tor safety 


